
TAPED 
The License Commission held its regular monthly meeting at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, May 16, 
2012, in the G.A.R. Room at City Hall.  Present were Chairman Scott H. McDuffy; 
Commissioners Paul D. Sullivan, Kathy A. Kenney, Joshua J. Wood; and Alternate Fred 
Fontaine.  Also present were License Agents Sgt. George Khoury and Officer Scott Uhlman, 
Asst. City Solicitor Kate Feodoroff and Adm. Asst. Bonnie Tucker.   
 
1. Approval of the Minutes of the License Commission Meeting of April 18, 2012.     
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the minutes of the April 18, 2012 
meeting.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kenney.   
 
Commissioner Fontaine stated he did not attend the meeting so he would not be voting on the 
minutes. 
 
With Commissioners Sullivan, Kenney, Wood and Chairman McDuffy voting in the affirmative, 
the motion carried.           
 
2. Approval of the following police officers as license agents for the month of June 2012:  

Lieuts. Paul Bonanca and Kenneth Legrice; Sgts. George Khoury, Frank Vardaro, James 
Baroud, Michael Powers and Charles Cassiani; Dets. Thomas Hyland and Nazaire Paul; 
and Officer Scott Uhlman. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Kenney to approve the police officers as listed which 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members present voting in the affirmative, 
the motion carried. 
 
3. Requests for Special One-day Permits: 
 

(a) Wine and Malt Beverages – Brockton Library Foundation – Fred Howell, 
Manager for a fundraiser to be held at the Brockton Public Library – 304 Main 
Street on Saturday, June 23, 2012, from 8:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. 

 
Present were Fred Howell, 185 Lincoln Street, Abington and Arnold Danielson, 603 Summer 
Street. 
 
Mr. Howell stated the application is for an All Alcohol license, not just beer and wine, and it was 
agreed that this would be amended.   He then reviewed that the function will be held at the Main 
Library.  It is their annual fundraiser to benefit the Library as well as the Poetry and Art Society 
and the Historical Society.  Mr. Danielson stated they are in the process of obtaining the liability 
insurance.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the Special one day all alcohol permit 
pending receipt of the liquor liability policy.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Fontaine.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried.  
 



2 
 

4. Hearing on the request from Club National Franco-American of Brockton – Stephen 
Pickett, Manager, to serve alcoholic beverages on the grounds outside the Club at 170 
Court Street on Saturday, June 23, 2012, from 12:00 noon to 9:00 p.m. for the annual 
steak and chicken bake. 

 
Present was Steve Pickett, 22 Aspen Street, who stated the Club holds an annual steak and 
chicken bake and they are requesting to serve alcohol outside for the day.  There will be no glass 
or bottles allowed outside.  Everything will be poured into plastic cups.  The event will be over 
no later than 9:00 p.m. and will start at noon.   
 
Commissioner Sullivan asked if there would be a detail officer present and Mr. Pickett stated 
they have not been required to have one in the past.   
 
Councillor Dennis Denapoli, Ward Five, was present and asked to be recorded in favor.  He 
stated there has never been any problems and it is his opinion that they do not need a detail 
officer assigned. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the request.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Kenney.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
5. Hearing on the request from Campello Veterans Firemen’s Association – James Badgio, 

Manager, to serve beer and wine on the grounds outside the Club at 224 Clinton Street on 
Saturday, September 8, 2012 from 12:00 noon to 6:00 p.m. for the annual chicken bake. 
(Rain date:  Sunday, September 9, 2012) 

 
Present was James Badgio, 770 Whitman Street, Hanson, who stated this is the Club’s annual 
chicken bake.  Everything will be poured into plastic cups both inside and outside and the 
outside will be shut down by 6:00 p.m.  Everything else will be shut down by 9:00 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the request which motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Kenney.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried.   
 
6. Hearing on the request from Harji Hotel, Inc. dba Holiday Inn Express for a Lodging 

House license at 405 Westgate Drive. 
 
Present was Attorney John McCluskey, 932 Main Street, who stated he represents both the Harji 
Hotel, Inc. and the Westgate Hotel, LLC which is the next item on the agenda.  It was agreed that 
they will hear both and take separate votes on each request.   
 
Also present were Chet Patel, 16 Forest Road, who stated he represents Westgate Hotel and 
Janak Patel, 800 Oaks Lane, Ashland.  Attorney McCluskey stated they are both present on 
behalf of the hotels and have full authority to act on behalf of both.  
 
Attorney McCluskey reviewed that at the present time, there is one lodging house license for the 
entire facility.  They have decided to divide the premise into two hotels.  The front location will 
be the Holiday Inn Express and the back will be the Westgate Hotel which is more of a long term 



3 
 

facility and is in a contract with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  The back unit is 
operating under the existing license and is already occupied.   
 
Attorney McCluskey stated he and Attorney Feodoroff had discussed whether or not two licenses 
would be needed and Attorney McCluskey indicated they feel two are required for liability 
purposes because the Holiday Inn has a specific contract with the owner and the Commonwealth 
has another contract with the owner.  There will be virtually no change in the operation.  The 
Holiday Inn Express has a short term stay clientele.  There is no longer a restaurant and function 
facility.  The pool in the back has been removed and a new pool has been installed inside the 
building.  Nayan Patel operates both locations and is the principal of both entities.  The property 
is owned by a trust which is also owned by Mr. Patel.   
 
Attorney McCluskey indicated they must still file the required inspection approvals.  He also 
reviewed that there was a tax issue but that an agreement is in place and to the best of his 
knowledge they are complying with the terms of the agreement.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff advised the board that two licenses are required. 
 
Chairman McDuffy asked about the construction at the location which was a concern with the 
extensive amount of work being done.  Attorney McCluskey indicated everything is up to code 
and Lieut. Williams is always checking on it.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the Lodging House license pending 
the department inspection approvals.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kenney.  All 
members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
  
7. Hearing on the request from Westgate Hotel, LLC dba Westgate Hotel for a Lodging 

House license at 405 Westgate Drive. 
 
(Refer to Agenda #6 for discussion on application.) 
 
A motion as made by Commissioner Kenney to approve the Lodging House license pending the 
department inspection approvals.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All 
members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
8. Hearing on the request from Demoulas Super Markets, Inc. dba Market Basket for a 

Common Victualer license at 200 Westgate Drive. 
 
Present was Ron Lambert, 264 East Street, Tewksbury, who stated they are planning to open the 
store next Tuesday.  He has been with the company for 40 years and he will be a director at this 
facility.  The store is 81,000 square feet.  They will also be opening another store in West 
Bridgewater.  He then explained that this location has a café and a small kitchen where they will 
make fresh subs, salads and pizza and will also serve coffee, juices and ice cream.  They will 
also be preparing dinners which can be purchased at the café and eaten in their cafeteria area.  
Mr. Lambert stated this is something new and this is the first location he has operated  that has 
the café and kitchen.  He indicated he has visited other grocery stores located within an eight 



4 
 

mile radius and is disappointed in the pricing and conditions in the stores and he feels Market 
Basket will offer a lot to the community.   
 
Mr. Lambert stated he has all of the inspection approvals.  In response to questions, he indicated 
he hired approximately 516 part time employees and about 24 of those will become full time.  He 
hopes that some of these individuals will become full time when they open the West Bridgewater 
store.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Kenney to approve the license.  The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Wood.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
9. Hearing (originally heard on April 18, 2012) continued on the request from St. Jean Auto 

Sales and Repair, Inc. to transfer the Class II Used Car Dealer license at 225 North 
Montello Street to North End Motors, Inc.    

 
Present were Attorney Joseph Doktor, 9 Memorial Parkway, Randolph, representing Guester St. 
Jean, 44 Appleton Street.  Also present for North End Motors, Inc. was Mohammad Ahmed, 10 
East Street. 
 
The Administrative Assistant reviewed that this license transfer was approved at the April 
meeting on the condition that the court judgment against Mr. Guestner was paid within one week 
as guaranteed by Mr. Ahmed.  If this did not happen, they would be required to come back 
before the Commission.  This is back on the agenda because the judgment was not paid.   
 
Attorney Doktor stated he was not at the last meeting, however, he is familiar with the case 
which is a small claims court case brought by one of the customers.  There had been a court 
hearing which Mr. St. Jean did not receive notice for so there was a judgment entered by default 
for $2500 against him.  When he learned about the judgment, they went to court and filed a 
motion and the judgment was vacated.  He indicated his client might have misspoken at the last 
meeting and used the term “dismissed”.  Attorney Doktor stated the case was not dismissed so 
there is no finding against Mr. St. Jean but a hearing has been set for May 24th.  He stated there is 
not a judgment to satisfy and in his opinion, the claim is very specious.  If the funds that have 
been escrowed are forced to be paid over to the complainant, there would be no recourse.  He 
asked that this not be a condition of the transfer because he is not aware of any authority pending 
an unproven case and this should not be an obstacle.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated that at the time of the hearing before the Commission, there was no 
paperwork from the Court except for the judgment.  Attorney Doktor stated they were waiting 
for the paperwork from the Court Clerk and it was issued a day late.  Attorney Feodoroff 
indicated that at the time, he made no mention of the motion to remove the default.   
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wood, Attorney Doktor stated the hearing is 
scheduled for 5/24/12.  Attorney Feodoroff indicated she was not aware of this until this evening.  
The complaint was written against Mr. St. Jean and his company, St. Jean Auto Sale.   Attorney 
Doktor suggested that the North End people have money in escrow which is due to Mr. St. Jean.  



5 
 

He indicated he would not be opposed if the transferees, through Attorney Asack, escrowed that 
portion of the money until the outcome of the trial.     
 
Attorney Feodoroff advised the Commission that she sees no problem if Attorney Asack escrows 
the money because they will have the motivation to release the funds if there is a judgment 
entered.  The Adm. Asst. suggested the license not be issued until this has been settled.   
 
Mr. Ahmed stated that Attorney Asack has the money in his escrow account.  Attorney Doktor 
stated there is $10,000 being held but he would offer that $2,500 be held back which is the 
amount of the judgment by default.  Commissioner Wood stated it would be held in escrow and 
the condition would be removed and as soon as there was proof that the money was placed in 
escrow, the transfer could go through and the Commission would not be a part of it. 
 
Attorney Doktor stated he had written to Ms. Mansulla on April 27th because she contends that 
she put money into a car she bought from Mr. St. Jean but she has never responded to his letter. 
 
Attorney Feodoroff suggested that $3,000 held in escrow should be sufficient to cover any pre-
judgment condition.   
 
Commissioner Wood stated they could vacate that condition and add a new precondition that 
says, the transfer shall take place with the precondition of proof that $2,600 is placed in escrow 
and as soon as proof of this is received, the transfer will go through.   
 
Mr. Ahmed stated they are willing to go along with this but if the money is being held in escrow, 
they should be able to get the license issued.  Commissioner Wood explained that this would be 
immediate as long as there is proof the escrow has been set up.  They will not have to wait for 
the judgment to come through in order to do the transfer.  Mr. Ahmed explained that he was the 
person who indicated he would pay the judgment and had wanted to but there was no judgment 
to pay so that is why it wasn’t paid.  It was agreed that $3,000 would be held in escrow. 
 
Prior to making a motion, the Administrative Assistant stated there had been no discussion about 
placement of the vehicles and asked about the number to be allowed on the lot.   
 
Officer Uhlman stated it would have to be done after the transfer and that it can be sent to him.  
He indicated he can work something out with them and the inspection can be done pending 
issuance of the license.  
 
Councillor Dennis Denapoli stated he understands what is going on and he is in favor of what the 
board is going to do.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wood to vacate the previous condition precedent to the 
transfer which was the satisfaction of the judgment.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Fontaine.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 



6 
 

A second motion was made by Commissioner Wood to add the precondition that $2,600 be 
placed in escrow and proof of escrow be provided to Asst. City Solicitor Feodoroff prior to 
transfer. 
 
Commissioner Kenney corrected Commissioner Wood in that the amount held in escrow should 
be $3,000.   
 
Commissioner Wood continued and amended the amount to $3,000 and that the license transfer  
be subject to the inspection of Officer Uhlman. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fontaine.  All members voting in the affirmative, 
the motion carried.   
  
10. Hearing on the revocation of the Class II Motor Vehicle Dealer license issued to North 

End Motors, Inc. at 1058 North Montello Street, on the charge that the licensed business 
is no longer being operated, reported on April 6, 2012. 

 
The following individuals were sworn by Attorney Feodoroff: 
 
Officer Scott Uhlman, Brockton Police 
Mohammad Ahmed, North End Motors 
 
On direct examination by Attorney Feodoroff, Officer Uhlman stated he inspected the property at 
1058 North Montello Street on April 6, 2012.  He observed that the business has no cars, the lot 
is vacant and the sign on the marquee reads, “call the new location 508-586-4271.”  Officer 
Uhlman stated he took the pictures of the photos in the file.  He then described each of the photos 
as follow: 
 
1. A picture of the office for North End Motors and an empty display lot.   
2. A picture of the marquee with a note that says to call new location and the phone number 

as well as a sorry we missed you receipt from the Water Department on 3/30/12.  His 
inspection was done seven days later. 

3. This photograph showed a sign in the window which reads North End – for assistance 
please call 508-586-4271.  The picture showed a collection of dried leaves, newspapers 
and two phonebooks on the landing in front of the door. 

 
Officer Uhlman stated he had been by the lot a number of times before April 6, 2012 and never 
saw any cars on the lot. 
 
Mr. Ahmed agreed that the lot was empty for a period of time.  They thought the lot was sold but 
during the process, the financing did not go through.  This went on for about seven or eight 
months.  He stated Avon Auto Brokers was buying it but the financing fell through.  North End 
does have other locations and they posted the phone number so any customers could call and get 
one of their other locations.  He admitted the lot was neglected after the sale had fallen through.  
The lot is now fully operational and someone is always there.  He stated they had a RMV hearing 
yesterday and everything had gone fine.  The Registry said they would send out an inspector.      



7 
 

During the time they were negotiating for the sale, they had shut down the operation.  The 
proposed buyer, Avon Auto, insisted it was a done deal and had asked if he could put his cars 
there because his lot was right next door.  Mr. Ahmed stated he told him that he couldn’t put his 
vehicles on his lot.  He apologized for not notifying the License Commission.  He indicated that 
they have three locations and have created about 40 jobs.   
 
It was reviewed that there is no history of violations. 
 
In response to questions from Chairman McDuffy, Mr. Ahmed stated the business is open every 
day, Monday through Saturday.  The Chairman advised Mr. Ahmed that is important that the 
business is open as he has represented and it will be monitored.   
 
Councillor Denapoli stated North End Motors has been in business for a long time and he 
understands the situation.  He then asked Officer Uhlman if they have had a violation in the City 
and Officer Uhlman indicated he has never had an occasion to inspect them.  Councillor 
Denapoli indicated he is in favor of them keeping the license at this location.   
 
Chairman McDuffy expressed concern that the locations will be neglected since they are also in 
the process of taking back their other property on North Montello Street.  Mr. Ahmed stated they 
were forced to take back the property at 225 North Montello Street because of nonpayment.  He 
assured the Commission that both locations will be fully operated. 
 
Attorney Feodoroff asked how the Registry had disposed of the case.  Mr. Ahmed stated they 
told him they would have a State Trooper stop by to make sure the business is operating.  They 
made an agreement which he signed.  They found no violations. 
 
Officer Uhlman stated he hasn’t been back to the area in a couple of months.  He stated he didn’t 
notify the RMV but there were still the outstanding dealer plates licensed to the business.  He 
thought he might have sent an email to the RMV.  
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wood, Attorney Feodoroff stated the licensee has 
admitted to a violation and he does have an obligation to notify the License Commission of any 
termination of his business.  She indicated they could request Officer Uhlman monitor the 
location or that a letter of reprimand be issued.  She indicated it might be helpful if the licensee 
provides the Commission with a copy of the agreement signed with the RMV.  Mr. Ahmed 
agreed to provide the documents.   
 
Officer Uhlman indicated he agrees with Attorney Feodoroff but doesn’t think it would be fair to 
go back and do an inspection now where he is scheduled with the Registry to get his plates back.  
He then indicated that the Registry will be a second set of eyes and someone else who is not 
involved in the case can inspect the lot.  He stated he can get a copy of the Registry’s inspection.   
 
Commissioner Fontaine then made a motion that North End Motors is guilty of the violation.  
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members voting in the affirmative, the 
motion carried. 
 



8 
 

A second motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to place a letter of reprimand in the 
licensee’s file.  
 
Commissioner Kenney stated she would like Commissioner Sullivan to amend his motion to ask 
a Brockton Police Officer to make an unscheduled inspection of the property within the next 
three months. 
 
Officer Uhlman stated he would not have a problem with making an inspection in two months 
but he does not want to go there tomorrow based on what has transpired tonight.  As long as the 
Registry says North End is up to snuff, that should be sufficient to prove he is running a 
legitimate business.   
 
Commissioner Kenney asked also to include in the motion that Mr. Ahmed provide the 
documentation from the Registry.   
 
Commissioner Sullivan agreed to amend the motion to include Commissioner Kenney’s 
suggestions.   
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Wood.  All members voting in the affirmative, the 
motion carried. 
 
11. POSTPONED AT REQUEST OF LICENSEE Hearing on the charges against 

Emysafari Dance Club Corp. – Christian Ekechukwu, Manager, 22-26 Perkins Avenue, 
of the following alleged violations reported by the local police on February 12, 2012 at 
1:05 a.m.: 

 
(a) Brockton License Commission Rule 8(a) (General On-Premise Licenses), to 

wit:  “The last drink must be served before the closing hour.  All glasses and 
bottles must be cleared from the tables or bar by 15 minutes after the closing hour.  
All customers must have left the premises by 30 minutes after the closing hour.  
Any licensee and his employees shall not be prohibited from being upon such 
premises at any time for the purpose of cleaning, making emergency repairs to, or 
providing security for, such premises or preparing food for the day’s business or 
opening or closing the business in an orderly manner.  They may not drink after 
the closing hour. 

 
(b) ABCC Rule 2.05 (2) Permitting an illegality on the licensed premises, to wit: 

“Allowing Entertainment beyond the approved hours.” 
 
12. POSTPONED AT REQUEST OF LICENSEE  Hearing on the charges against Vulcan 

Bar, Inc. – Augusto Rosa, Manager, 705 North Montello and 48 Ames Street, of the 
following alleged violations reported on March 4, 2012: 

 
(a)  Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission 204CMR 2.05(2) – Permitting an 

illegality on the licensed premises, to wit:  “M.G.L. Chapter 138, Section 34 – 
Sale or delivery of an alcoholic beverage to a person under 21 years of age”; and 



9 
 

 
(b) Brockton License Commission Rule 8(b)(1) (All Alcoholic Restaurant) 

pertaining to Holders of Licenses with a 2:00 a.m. closing hour, to wit:  “No 
patrons are allowed admittance after 1:00 a.m.  Any patron leaving the 
establishment, not to include patrons going outside to smoke, is not allowed to re-
enter after 1:00 a.m.“  “A violation . . . will result in an automatic one hour 
rollback of the closing hour as well as any other sanction(s) deemed appropriate.” 

 
13. Communications 
 
A violation reported at Hayden’s Package Store will be scheduled for the Commission’s next 
meeting.  Sgt. Khoury briefly reviewed the reports which were submitted by himself and Lieut. 
Bonanca.  He indicated they have been conducting surveillances at different liquor stores in the 
City and when they were watching Hayden’s they observed a young female college student 
coming out after making a purchase.  The owner has been cooperative.  Officer Uhlman 
indicated there have been stings conducted through a grant over the past several years.  
 
Commissioner Sullivan asked about the regulation regarding the blocking of the windows in 
liquor establishments.  Officer Uhlman indicated this falls under the rules of the License 
Commission, however, he understands it is frowned upon when he writes someone up.  He 
indicated if the establishment has windows they have to be visible up to five feet.  Attorney 
Feodoroff indicated it is not frowned upon, however, she recalled that one of the establishments 
in question had curtains for ambience.  Commissioner Wood indicated it was his recollection that 
there was some question as to the interpretation of the rule as it is written and it was agreed that 
the rule would have to be rewritten in order to have consistent enforcement  
 
14. Any other business to properly come before the Commission. 
 
With no further business to come before the Commission, a motion was made by Commissioner 
Wood to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fontaine.  All 
members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
            Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
            _________________________________  
            Scott H. McDuffy 
            Chairman 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  
Paul D. Sullivan, Commissioner  
 



10 
 

 
______________________________  
Bruce G. Dansby, Commissioner 
 
 
 
______________________________  
Joshua J. Wood, Commissioner 
 
 
 
______________________________  
Kathy Kenney, Commissioner    
 
 
 
______________________________  
Fred Fontaine, Alternate Commissioner 
 
 
  
 
 


